[bookmark: _GoBack]UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES
Secretary, United States
Department of Housing and Urban
Development, on behalf of the Fair
Housing Partnership of Greater
Pittsburgh, Inc.
ALT No.
Charging Party,
v.	FHEO No. 03-15-0119-8
S & J Ventures, LP, Allan Zytnick :
Trust Fund (aka Allan Zytnick
Trust Fund Subtrust for the benefit :
of Jay Zytnick and Allan Zytnick	:
Trust Fund Subtrust for the benefit :
of Sheldon Zytnick) and A.Z.
Zytnick Realty, LLC,
Respondents.
CHARGE OF DISCRIMINATION
I.	JURISDICTION
On November 18, 2014, Complainant Fair Housing Partnership of Pittsburgh, Inc. (Complainant) filed a complaint with the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), alleging that Respondents A.Z. Zytnick, LLC, S & J Ventures, LP and Allan Zytnick Trust Fund (Respondents) were responsible for discriminatory refusal to rent; discriminatory terms, conditions, or privileges of rental, discriminatory interference and failure to grant a reasonable accommodation. The Complainant alleges that the Respondents' discriminatory acts were based on disability.'
The Act authorizes the Secretary of HUD to issue a Charge of Discrimination on behalf of aggrieved persons following an investigation and determination that reasonable cause exists to believe that a discriminatory housing practice has occurred. 42 U.S.C. §§ 3610(g)(1) and (2). The Secretary has delegated that authority to the General Counsel, who has re-delegated the authority to the Regional Counsel. 24 C.F.R.
§§ 103.400 and 103.405; 76 Fed. Reg. 42463, 42465 (July 18, 2011).
Although the term "handicap" appears in the Fair Housing Act and its implementing regulations, the Charge and Determination of Reasonable Cause use the terms "disability" and "handicap" interchangeably.

The Regional Director of the Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity for Region III, on behalf of the Assistant Secretary for Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity, has determined that reasonable cause exists to believe that discriminatory housing practices have occurred in this case and has authorized the issuance of this Charge of Discrimination. 42 U.S.C. § 3610(g)(2).
II.	SUMMARY OF THE ALLEGATIONS IN SUPPORT OF THIS CHARGE 
Based on HUD's investigation of the allegations contained in the aforementioned complaint and the Determination of Reasonable Cause, Respondents are hereby charged with violating the Fair Housing Act (the Act) as follows:
A. Statutory and Regulatory Provisions
1. It is unlawful to make, print, or publish or cause to be made, printed or published any notice, statement or advertisement with respect to the sale or rental of a dwelling that indicates any preference, limitation or discrimination based on disability, or an intention to make any such preference, limitation or discrimination. 42 U.S.C. § 3604(c); 24 C.F.R. § 100.75(c)(1).
2. It is unlawful to discriminate against a person in the terms, conditions, or privileges of a sale or rental of a dwelling, or in the provision of services or facilities in connection therewith, because of disability. 42 U.S.C. § 3604(0(2); 24 C.F.R. § 100.202(b)(1).
3. Discrimination under 42 U.S.C. § 3604(0(1) and (0(2) includes denying a person with a disability a reasonable accommodation when such accommodation may be necessary to afford such person equal opportunity to enjoy a dwelling. 42 U.S.C. § 3604(f)(3)(B); 24 C.F.R. § 100.204(a).
4. A reasonable accommodation is a change in a rule, policy, practice or service when such accommodation may be necessary to afford a person with a disability the equal opportunity to enjoy a dwelling. 42 U.S.C. § 3604(f)(3)(B); 24 C.F.R. § 100.204(a).
5. "Disability" is defined as a physical or mental impairment which substantially limits a person's major life activities, a record of having such an impairment, or being regarded as having such an impairment. 42 U.S.C. § 3602(h); 24 C.F.R. § 100.201.
B. Parties and Properties
6. Complainant Fair Housing Partnership of Greater Pittsburgh, Inc., is a non-profit fair housing rights organization dedicated to creating equal housing choice in Southwestern Pennsylvania through fair housing advocacy, housing discrimination, testing and comprehensive housing counseling services. Complainant's offices are located at 2840 Liberty Avenue, Suite #205, in Pittsburgh Pennsylvania.
7. Complainant is an aggrieved person, as defined by the Act. 42 U.S.C. § 3602(i).

S. The properties that are the subject of this Charge are Beechwood Gardens and Southpointe Towers ("subject properties"). Beechwood Gardens is an apartment complex located in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania comprising 144 units and Southpointe Towers, located in West Mifflin, PA, has 157 units.
9. Respondent S & J Ventures, LP is the owner and manager of Southpointe Towers. Respondent Allan Zytnick Trust Fund (aka Allan Zytnick Trust Fund Subtrust for the benefit of Jay Zytnick and Allan Zytnick Trust Fund Subtrust for the benefit of Sheldon Zytnick) are the owners of Beechwood Gardens. Respondent A.Z. Zytnick Realty, LLC manages the Beechwood property.
C. Factual Allegations
10. On January 1, 2014, all Southpointe Towers tenants received a notice stating "effective immediately all residents paying for a reserved parking space may park in any spot designated for reserved parking. There will no longer be any assigned spaces, no exceptions. If you do not pay for a reserved parking spot, you must park in the upper lot located in front of the building."
11. On January 23, 2014, Complainant received a call from a tenant living at Southpointe Towers who complained about the new parking policy that prohibits designated parking for persons with disabilities.
12. Complainant conducted a series of phone tests on the subject properties relating to reasonable accommodation requests on behalf of persons with disabilities.
Parking
13. On May 29, 2014, one of Complainant's testers responded to an advertisement for an available unit at Southpointe Towers. Inquiring about a one bedroom unit, the Tester asked if she would be able to get a reserved parking space near the apartment for her husband who can walk no more than 100 feet due to his disability. A woman identified as "Catherine" (also referred to as "Kathryn") told the Tester that there is plenty of free handicap parking as well as "reserved spaces" around the building which cost $30 per month. The Tester reiterated her husband's need for a designated parking space within 100 feet of the building. Catherine responded that there was all kinds of parking available at Southpointe.
14. On June 13, 2014, a second test was conducted at Southpointe Towers. The Tester spoke with a woman who identified herself as "Catherine" (also referred to as "Kathryn") and said she would need an assigned parking space due to her mobility disability which prevents her from walking more than 200 feet without resting. Catherine told the Tester that there is no designated parking and added that the law does not allow the owner to make handicapped parking into designated parking. When the Tester asked her if there was any documentation she could bring from her doctor to substantiate her need for a designated parking space, Catherine stated "no" and reiterated the availability of parking.
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15. On June 13, 2014, a Tester called Beechwood Gardens and spoke with a woman who identified herself as Charlene. The Tester inquired about an advertised unit and Respondents' parking policy. The Tester explained that her husband has a mobility disability and could not walk more than 200 feet without resting and asked: "Is there any designated parking?" Charlene responded, "Unfortunately, we don't have designated parking." The Tester asked: "Do you have any handicapped parking anywhere?" Charlene said: "No, we do not have any handicapped parking." The Tester then inquired if it would be possible to get a designated parking space if she provided documentation from her husband's doctor confirming his mobility disability. Charlene responded: "No, I'm sorry. That is not possible."
16. On July 28, 2015, a Tester called Beechwood Gardens and spoke with someone who identified herself as Sonya. The tester inquired about a one-bedroom apartment and asked if she and her husband could have a designated parking space due to her husband's limited mobility. Sonya replied that she imagined so, but that she must speak with the owner to confirm.
17. On August 16, 2014, in response to an advertisement, a Tester contacted Beechwood Gardens by telephone and spoke with a woman identified as Charlene. The Tester inquired about the private parking mentioned in the ad. Charlene told the Tester that the monthly fee was $50 in addition to a one-time refundable deposit of $50 for the plastic parking card. The Tester explained that his wife has a disability that prevents her from walking long distances and asked if could have a parking space reserved for her that would be close to the door. Charlene responded "No" and noted that the pass was not for specific spaces.
Emotional Support Animals
18. On June 10, 2014, a Tester, representing an individual with a disability, called via relay to Southpointe Towers and spoke to a woman who identified herself as Catherine (also referred to as "Kathryn") about an advertisement for a two-bedroom unit. The Tester explained that she has an emotional support animal due to a disability and asked if she would be able to have her emotional support dog in the unit. Kathryn (or Catherine) said that no pets or animals were allowed. The Tester explained that her dog was not a pet but an emotional support animal. Catherine responded that the property did not accept any animals under any condition. The Tester asked if she could provide documentation from her therapist stating her need for her emotional support dog. Catherine consulted with someone at Southpointe and told the Tester that the emotional support dog would be allowed if the Tester provided paperwork confirming the animal is required and paid a $300 non-refundable deposit and a $25 monthly fee.
Changes to Rent Due Date Due to Receipt of SSDI 
19. On August 18, 2014, a Tester called Southpointe Towers and spoke with an 4

unidentified male. The Tester inquired about a one-bedroom unit and asked if she would be able to pay rent on the third of each month rather than the first due to receiving SSDI on the third of each month. The unidentified male responded that the request would not be granted and noted that if Respondent allowed her to pay on the third of each month, they would have to apply the rule to all tenants.
Denial of Reasonable Accommodations
20. By denying Complainant testers' requests for parking, an emotional support animal and a change in the rental due date, as reasonable accommodations on the basis of disability, Respondents discriminated in the terms and conditions of housing in violation of the Fair Housing Act.
21. As a result of Respondents' discriminatory actions, Complainant's mission was frustrated. Furthermore, Complainant expended time and diverted its resources to responding to the discrimination. Complainant conducted an investigation of Respondents' housing advertisements, which required strategic planning and testing. Complainant initiated a fair housing education campaign to counteract Respondent's discriminatory actions. The resources expended for these activities were diverted from Complainant's other fair housing programs.
D. Fair Housing Act Violations
22. By rejecting Testers' requests for designated parking, an emotional support animal and a change in the rental due date, as reasonable accommodations for a prospective tenant with a disability, Respondents discriminated on the basis of disability in violation of 42 U.S.C. §§ 3604(0(2) and 3604(f)(3)(B); 24 C.F.R. § 100.204(a).
23. By telling Testers that a prospective tenant with a disability may not obtain a designated parking space, an emotional support animal or a change in the rental due date needed because of their disability, Respondents discriminated by indicating a preference against persons with disabilities in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(c).
III. CONCLUSION
WHEREFORE, the Secretary of the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development, through the Office of Regional Counsel for the Philadelphia Regional Office, and pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3610(g)(2)(A), hereby charges Respondents with engaging in discriminatory housing practices in violation of 42 U.S.C. §§ 3604 (c), (f)(2)(a) and (f)(3)(B) and requests that an order be issued that:
1. Declares that Respondents' discriminatory housing practices, as set forth above, violate Sections 3604 (c), (f)(2)(a) and (f)(3)(B) of the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 3604 (c), (f)(2)(a) and (0(3)(B).
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)Enjoins Respondents and all other persons in active concert or participation with Respondents from discriminating against any person based on disability in any aspect of the sale or rental of a dwelling;
3. Awards such damages as will fully compensate Complainant;
4. Assesses a civil penalty against each Respondent for each violation of the Act, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3612(g)(3) and 24 C.F.R. § 180.671;
5. Awards any additional relief as may be appropriate, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3612(g)(3).
Respectfully submitted on this day of	, 2016
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U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development 
Office of the Regional Counsel 
The Wanamaker Building 
100 Penn Square East 
Philadelphia, PA 19107-3380 
Telephone: (215) 430-6664 
Fax: (215) 656-3446 
TTY:(215) 656-3450
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